

# Far Plan For 1 Continued EXCELENCE

2011-2016

Task Force on Distance and Blended Learning ~ January 2011

# SPONSORED BY THE ALABAMA STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

#### AND THE

#### ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

#### Dr. Joseph B. Morton

State Superintendent of Education

#### **Dr. Warren Craig Pouncey**

Deputy State Superintendent of Education Administrative and Financial Services

#### **TECHNOLOGY INITIATIVES**

Dr. Melinda Maddox, Director
Earlene Patton
Lawrence (Larry) Raines
Debbie Crutchfield
Misty Dixon
Joan Greene
John Halbrooks
Linda Jarzyniecki
Ramona Langston
Mary (Meg) Lowry
Rhonda Oates

#### **ACCESS SUPPORT CENTER DIRECTORS**

#### **Barry Barnett**

The University of Alabama

#### **Dr. Anne Burgess Davidson**

**Madison City Schools** 

#### Reba Davis

**Troy University** 



No person shall be denied employment, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination in any program or activity on the basis of disability, gender, race, religion, national origin, color, age or genetics. Ref: Sec. 1983, Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C.; Title VI and VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964; Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Sec. 504; Age Discrimination in Employment Act; The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and The Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008; Equal Pay Act of 1963; Title IX of the Education Amendment of 1972; Title II of the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008: Title IX Coordinator, P.O. Box 302101, Montgomery, Alabama 36130-2101 or call (334) 242-8165.

#### 2011 Access Task Force on Distance and Blended Learning

#### **Margaret Blake**

Instructional Technology Coordinator Baldwin County Schools

#### Rebecca S. Boddie

Counselor Boaz High School Boaz City Schools

#### Lisa Boyd, NBCT

Instructional Technology Coordinator Jefferson County Schools

#### Sallie Chastain

Community Education and E-curriculum Coordinator Talladega County Schools

#### Dr. Monica DeTure

Director of Distance Learning and Outreach Technology Auburn University

#### **Bonnie Durham**

Program Director
Appalachian Regional
Commission
Alabama Department of
Economic and
Community Affairs

#### **Randy Fulmer**

Chief Executive Officer Alabama Supercomputer Authority

#### **Marlin Harris**

ACCESS Teacher Prattville High School Autauga County Schools

#### **Don Hulin**

Principal Hoover High School Hoover City Schools

#### Dr. Franklin King

Jacksonville State
University
Professor of Instructional
Media
Associate Vice President for
Distance Education

#### Michele J. Korf

Executive Director of
Distance Learning and
Outreach
The University of
Alabama System

#### Dr. Fannie L. Major-McKenzie

Superintendent Dallas County Schools

#### Lisa Myrick

ACCESS Teacher Sheffield High School Sheffield City Schools

#### Dr. Charles Nash

Vice Chancellor for Academic Affairs The University of Alabama System

#### **Ed Nichols**

Assistant Superintendent Decatur City Schools

#### Allan A. Pizzato

Executive Director of Alabama Public Television

#### Rebecca Pow

Associate Dean, College of Continuing Studies The University of Alabama

#### J. Ricky Sizemore

Principal Marion County High School Marion County Schools

#### Ronald Snell

Principal Northview High School Dothan City Schools

#### Dr. Lance E. Tatum

Dean of Education Troy University

#### **Jackie Posey**

Representative Save Alabama's Small Schools Alabama Arise

#### **Margie Treadwell**

Counselor Daleville High School Daleville City Schools

#### Laura Ward

Counselor Chilton County High School Chilton County Schools

#### **Tommy Whitten**

District Technology Coordinator Madison County Schools

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary	1
Statement of Intent	3
Vision	3
Mission	3
Goal	3
Background and Status	3
Objectives for 2011-2016	9
Offerings	9
Availability and Use	9
Models of Instruction	
Instructional Support	10
Student Support	10
Collaboration	11
Visibility	11
State Oversight	12
Sustainability	12
Budget	13
Conclusion	13
Bibliography	14

# ACCESS: A DISTANCE AND BLENDED LEARNING MODEL FOR ALABAMA 2011-2016 JANUARY 2011

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

The Alabama ACCESS (Alabama Connecting Classrooms, Educators, and Students Statewide) Distance Learning Initiative was launched November 1, 2004, with initial funding of \$10.3 million starting October 1, 2005. The distance and blended learning initiative was the culmination of research and planning by the Task Force on Distance Learning. In Year One, the central vision of the Task Force was to provide equal access to high-quality instruction to improve student achievement through distance learning opportunities. In Year Two through Year Five, the vision became reality. The ACCESS Distance Learning Initiative has become a cornerstone in providing equitable education to ALL Alabama public school students in a cost-effective model regardless of their zip codes.

This initiative is providing opportunities for students at their local community schools that would have otherwise not been possible. It has surpassed all original goals by developing a blended learning model providing resources, connectivity, and professional development, thus involving not only distance learning, but various blended learning models of delivery. This has supported the growth and excellence of Alabama teachers, expanded their reach across the state, given our schools the resources to develop and offer new communities of learning, and given our students the advantage of being prepared for college and careers. Even more opportunities are being planned for 2011-2016. As education is being redesigned across our nation, ACCESS is positioned to enable all Alabama public high schools to move to a more accessible blended learning course delivery model, providing opportunities for every student so that all Alabama's high school graduates are college- and career-ready.

The objectives and strategies for 2011-2016 have the potential to transform teaching and learning by providing high-quality learning opportunities for all students in Alabama. Providing flexible time, pace, and place instruction for all Alabama students will enable educators to customize the educational environment so every student learns in his or her own style and at his or her own pace. The objectives are divided into nine sections: Offerings, Availability and Use, Models of Instruction, Instructional Support, Student Support, Collaboration, Visibility, State Oversight, and Sustainability. The nine objectives are as follows:

<u>Objective 1</u>: Provide students with additional courses and electives needed to meet individual educational goals and to provide a fully rounded curriculum, including 21st Century skills accessible to all public high schools in Alabama.

<u>Objective 2</u>: Expand the availability and use of ACCESS Distance and Blended Learning.

<u>Objective 3</u>: Refine and expand the blended model of instruction to every high school with attention to the following: individual and institutional needs; flexible time, pace, and place accommodation; budget efficiencies; standards; and leveraging existing resources throughout the state.

<u>Objective 4</u>: Use ACCESS resources, including online professional development and best practices, to support and evaluate teachers and facilitators and to prepare them for effective, efficient facilitation of learning.

<u>Objective 5</u>: Provide a continuum of mentoring for students by taking advantage of the full range of stakeholders.

<u>Objective 6</u>: Establish collaborative relationships with two- and fouryear institutions, industry and other community entities to facilitate and enhance college and career preparatory coursework.

<u>Objective 7</u>: Expand awareness, understanding, and appreciation of the ACCESS program and structure among all stakeholders.

<u>Objective 8</u>: Provide administrative oversight, management, and support through the Alabama Department of Education and Support Centers.

<u>Objective 9</u>: Refine a sustainability and long-term funding plan for maintenance and growth in the number of students served.

The ACCESS initiative has become a cornerstone for our efforts in Alabama to provide equity toward a quality education and reverse statistics citing Alabama among the lowest-performing states for high school and college graduates. In just six years ACCESS has reached out to serve all high schools within the state, and is now widely relied upon to provide key expanded offerings to students, teachers, and schools. Yet there is even greater promise for return on investment. Through existing infrastructure, services, and content, ACCESS is positioned to enable efficiencies within the state while at the same time dramatically broaden quality education opportunities. Proven success coupled with efficiency has never been more critical, and ACCESS Distance and Blended Learning represents enormous potential to leverage support as it contributes to the future educational agenda.

#### STATEMENT OF INTENT

The intent of this ACCESS (Alabama Connecting Classrooms, Educators, and Students Statewide) Plan 2011-2016 is to outline the objectives and strategies necessary to maintain, support, and further advance the vision of this highly successful and nationally recognized instructional program. These objectives are designed to enhance the ACCESS Distance and Blended Learning model and leverage its infrastructure and resources for future growth.

#### **VISION**

The state of Alabama will provide equal access to high-quality instruction to improve student achievement through distance and blended learning.

#### **MISSION**

The mission of the Alabama ACCESS Distance and Blended Learning model is to provide an infrastructure that delivers equitable, quality learning opportunities for all high school students.

#### GOAL

The goal of the Alabama ACCESS Distance and Blended Learning model is to provide equity through additional high-quality course offerings for all Alabama public high school students.

#### BACKGROUND AND STATUS

ACCESS Distance and Blended Learning delivers quality instruction and coursework to Alabama students by blending Web-based and interactive videoconferencing courses taught by Alabama teachers; provides technical infrastructure; provides regional support centers to hire, train, and support e-teachers; and offers statewide coordination.

ACCESS is an innovative program that has redesigned the model for distance learning, tailoring online and interactive videoconferencing services to the needs of schools and individual students through a blended delivery method. ACCESS is the first statewide initiative that has focused on bringing truly equitable instructional opportunities to all Alabama public high school students, regardless of where they attend school.

This program, under the supervision of the Alabama Department of Education, has strong partnerships with the Governor's Office, the Alabama Supercomputer Authority, and local school districts that have been key to its success. In essence, ACCESS is changing the face of education in Alabama, making a positive difference in teachers, schools, and ultimately economic development for the state.

In six short years, Alabama's ACCESS Distance Learning program has grown from a vision to the reality of providing every high school student an opportunity to take a wide range of courses. A Task Force was convened in the fall of 2004 to develop a plan that was presented to the legislature in the spring of 2005. ACCESS Distance Learning was funded at \$10.3 million for FY06 and is currently funded for FY11 at \$19 million.

In 2003, Alabama administered only 99 Advanced Placement exams per 1,000 juniors and seniors, ranking 14th out of 16 southern states. Alabama had a high need for a remediation and supplemental resources plan to increase the high school graduation rate. Alabama also had difficulty attracting and retaining highly qualified teachers (particularly in rural, impoverished areas) and especially in the areas of foreign languages, Advanced Placement, and other electives. With the implementation of ACCESS and other state initiatives, strides have been made in each of these areas. Thus, in 2007, the Average Freshman Graduation Rate was 67%, up from 62% in 2002. Since 2004, the number of Advanced Placement test takers in Alabama public schools has almost doubled. The number of African American test takers has more than quadrupled, and the number of qualifying exam scores has more than doubled. Five times more low-income students are taking Advanced Placement exams and three times more are scoring 3 or higher.

Funds have been awarded through this program to the schools so that all Alabama public high schools now have a 21st Century distance and blended learning lab including tablet computers, videoconferencing equipment, interactive whiteboards, and other technologies (completed in the fall of 2009). Broadband connectivity (minimum of 20Mbps and recently upgraded to 50Mbps based on demand) has been funded by the program and installed in every public school system. Virtual field trips have been organized and delivered by experts such as NASA and Antarctica scientists, foreign diplomats, FBI Special Agents, and others.

Extensive outside evaluation is conducted annually by the International Society for Technology in Education (ISTE), and changes are made in response to this feedback. The 2009-2010 ISTE report cited the positive impact of ACCESS.: (1) Increases Graduation Rate; (2) Broadens Students' Horizons on Higher Education; (3) Prepares Students for College and the World of Work; (4) Enhances Students' Attitudes Toward Learning; and (5) Gives Students a "Window on the World." One principal observed, "We decreased our dropout rate by 16% in five years. We went from last to first in test scores in several areas, thanks to ACCESS." Another principal said, "ACCESS brings the world of education to the local level." One principal summarizes, "ACCESS is taking all of us (in Alabama) into the 21st Century." The report states, "though the primary goal of the ACCESS Distance and Blended Learning Initiative is increased access to high-quality educational opportunities for all Alabama students, program personnel continue to hear anecdotal observations that these opportunities are having pervasive impact on educational reform efforts throughout the state."

The program is currently offering 115 unique courses, including 13 Advanced Placement courses. In FY2010 alone, ACCESS provided 29,415 student enrollments in courses needed by students to meet graduation requirements and 11,746 additional enrollments in noncredit remediation modules for the Alabama High School Graduation Exam and Career Forward. In the area of foreign languages, ACCESS has delivered more than 9,981 enrollments in five different foreign languages including French, German, Latin, Spanish, and Mandarin Chinese. Over 659 teacher units have delivered courses for FY2010. Now, students can be taught by certified, highly qualified Alabama teachers, regardless of where they live. A breakdown by year is as follows:

Year	Grants to Pilot Schools	Credit Enrollments	Non-Credit Enrollments	Teachers	Total Courses
FY06	44	4,382	704	103	59
FY07	26	9,508	4,108	316	77
FY08	100	22,264	13,592	362	115
FY09	190	26,197	6,059	560	107
FY10		29,415	11,746	659	115

Rigorous, high-quality, Web-based, and Interactive Videoconferencing (VCI) courses are aligned with Alabama standards. These courses include over 65 Web-based courses with additional courses under development, as well as various VCI courses as determined by the schools offering the courses. Dual enrollment/dual credit courses are being delivered via the ACCESS infrastructure. In addition, five remediation modules for the Alabama High School Graduation Exam (AHSGE) and Advanced Placement Exam Reviews in ten content areas are offered for all students throughout the state. Course development and upgrade are continuous processes that include a team of course designers and content experts. All courses undergo an alignment and approval process by additional content experts including experienced ACCESS teachers.

Instructional and technical support is provided by three regional support centers: Troy University ACCESS Support Center; The University of Alabama ACCESS Support Center; and Madison City Schools ACCESS Support Center, as well as the Alabama Department of Education staff. Statewide technical infrastructure has been established that includes 21st Century ACCESS classrooms in all Alabama public high schools through awarding of technology grants. The three regional support centers provide a level of support unique to the ACCESS program. Located at Troy University, The University of Alabama, and Madison City Schools, the ACCESS Support Centers train, hire, mentor, and supervise ACCESS teachers. The support centers are a vital link in program management in that they provide continuous assistance, communication, and training to counselors, principals, teachers, facilitators, and students in the learning management system, the registration portal, policies, and procedures. This regional model of support has enhanced the rapid growth and implementation of the ACCESS program.

Network connectivity serving the ACCESS Distance Learning program is provided by the Alabama Supercomputer Authority (ASA) through its statewide education network, the Alabama Research and Education Network (AREN). ASA provides the level of broadband connectivity required by ACCESS schools to successfully participate in VCI and Web-based courses. Initially, ASA provided 10Mbps of broadband connectivity to all school systems. Subsequently, broadband connectivity upgrades have been installed, first to 20Mbps and later to 50Mbps for school systems based on usage demands as monitored by ASA's Network Operations Center. Broadband connectivity is provided to ACCESS schools as needed depending on the school system's connectivity infrastructure choice. In addition, ASA provides broadband connectivity to the three ACCESS Regional Support Centers and to the Alabama Department of Education to enable effective program administration and training. Alabama's colleges and universities are also served statewide through the AREN infrastructure. A key benefit of the AREN infrastructure is the ability to deliver all ACCESS IP traffic over a managed network with network "quality of service" guarantees. This means that VCI traffic that is sensitive to "on time delivery" is guaranteed to be of maximum quality through network engineering and management services provided by ASA. Additionally, ASA makes available the services of a VCI bridge to all ACCESS schools for VCI sessions requiring a number of connections that exceed the capacity of the school's local VCI equipment. This has proven to be especially important for virtual field trips such as the UAB Antarctica event, which needed to connect 20 schools. AREN also provides its client base access to national research networks such as Internet2 (I2) and National LambdaRail (NLR).

ACCESS onsite and online professional development for teachers, facilitators, counselors, and principals follows the guidelines set forth by the State Virtual School Support component of SREB's and iNACOL's Guidelines for Professional Development of Online Teachers. Learning activities are currently implemented that support the standards and their associated indicators in SREB's and iNACOL's Standards for Quality Online Teaching. We have developed a four-step plan that consists of: (1) three-day face-to-face pre-service training with experienced teachers who desire to become ACCESS teachers; (2) peer Leader-to-Protégé training during the first and second terms of novice teacher course assignment; (3) an ongoing Professional Development Plan, with training provided by the ACCESS SDE staff that requires teachers to complete six hours the first year and two hours each year after of online ongoing distance and blended learning training covering 20-25 topics; and (4) "anytime training" offered through Connecting ACCESS Staff and Teachers, the Learning Management System course, providing tutorials, discussion board, news and announcements, etc., to make available immediate instruction, help, and resources. To meet the plan requirement for the calendar year 2010, the following professional development activity hours have been offered: (1) collectively, the support centers offered 558 hours of face-to-face training to ACCESS stakeholders including teachers, facilitators, principals, and counselors from school districts across the state; (2) support centers also offered 12 hours

of online professional development to the same stakeholders; and (3) in 2010, the ACCESS staff at the Alabama Department of Education offered 250 hours of online training and 11 hours of conference training at the Alabama Educational Technology Conference in June.

A new student registration system has recently been implemented that is integrated with the state student information system and the ACCESS learning management system. The State Department staff and three support centers offer professional development and extensive helpdesk support to schools and teachers in the registration and grade-awarding process. During the past five years, policy manuals have been developed to support the needs of the students, teachers, facilitators, and administrators. Each year these policies are reviewed to allow flexibility at the schools to meet the needs of each student while ensuring quality.

From the beginning in 2005, ACCESS has developed a blended model of instructional delivery using Web-based course content, Web conferencing software, and VCI equipment. Currently, new models of blended instruction are being adopted as Alabama teachers are using the ACCESS online resources and content in their face-to-face classes. Alabama's first statewide Distance Learning Week was initiated in 2010 with a variety of virtual field trips.

The blended approach to instructional delivery is now being implemented in different models in Alabama, such as the blended model of delivery being piloted by Hoover High School. Currently, seniors at Hoover High School have the option of taking 12th Grade English and/or 12th Grade Economics and U.S. Government through a blended class where they meet face to face with their teacher once per week and complete assignments and other discussions online. Validity for summative and performance assessments is maintained. This model lessens the physical demands on the high school building in terms of classrooms and space, and strict student eligibility guidelines are adhered to. The pilot prepares students for online college learning and creates time for students to enroll in college coursework and/or work part-time while enrolled. The pilot phase is limited to 120 students; however, student, faculty, and community interest is extremely high with anticipation of program expansion.

Despite its relatively short existence, ACCESS has already been identified as the third largest state virtual school in the country in the 2010 Keeping Pace with K-12 Online Learning. The program has received national and international attention through a number of articles in major professional journals that have referred to it as a catalyst for progress in education and a trailblazer in distance learning. The Economist said, "ACCESS is leveling the playing field." Film crews and reporters from national FoxNews and CNN have visited Alabama to interview and film ACCESS leaders, teachers, and students. Both networks have aired segments featuring the positive work Alabama is doing in providing equitable education to all students through distance learning. ACCESS sites have also been toured by representatives from other countries who have learned of the program's success. Articles

have been written in eSchool News, T. H. E. Journal, Converge, Principal Leadership, Internet and Higher Education, and numerous newspapers. Books such as ISTE's Technology Facilitation and Leadership Standards and Evaluating Online Learning Challenges and Strategies for Success have featured sections on ACCESS Distance Learning. A detailed bibliography is included.

#### **OBJECTIVES FOR 2011-2016**

#### **OFFERINGS**

<u>Objective 1</u>: Provide students with additional courses and electives needed to meet individual educational goals and to provide a fully rounded curriculum, including 21st Century skills accessible to all public high schools in Alabama.

- Provide access to additional course offerings including, but not limited to, advanced diploma, dual credit, Advanced Placement, and International Baccalaureate courses.
- Provide opportunities at earlier grade levels to prepare students to take advanced academic courses.
- Provide access to credit recovery and remediation courses.
- Provide access to additional supplemental resources including virtual field trip opportunities.
- Provide a comprehensive learning objects repository and create an incentive program for the development and sharing of model courses and modules.

#### **AVAILABILITY AND USE**

### <u>Objective 2</u>: Expand the availability and use of ACCESS Distance and Blended Learning.

- Develop understanding of the essential nature of the ACCESS program by all school instructional leaders.
- Expand the extent of use of ACCESS in every public high school with a goal of giving every high school student the opportunity to participate in an ACCESS learning experience.
- Develop processes for non-traditional students to enroll and participate in ACCESS courses through their local public school.
- Develop procedures to implement annual VCI scheduling in early spring.
- Develop additional electives including fine arts, career technical, computing, and technology.
- Make multimedia and technology tools to enhance instruction available to all teachers.
- Provide ACCESS equipment grants to career tech centers as funding permits.
- Develop experiences for middle school students through a developmental/incremental approach that will prepare them for fully independent online/distance/blended learning courses as funding permits.

#### MODELS OF INSTRUCTION

<u>Objective 3</u>: Refine and expand the blended model of instruction to every high school with attention to the following: individual and institutional needs; flexible time, pace, and place accommodation; budget efficiencies; standards; and leveraging existing resources throughout the state.

- Develop ways and provide support for ACCESS teachers to use course content in their face-to-face (F2F) classes using a blended course model.
- Develop ways and provide support for schools to offer ACCESS courses with flexible time, pace, and place instruction.
- Develop ways and provide support for all high school teachers to incorporate ACCESS technologies and resources in F2F classroom teaching strategies using a blended course model.
- Develop and refine course delivery to follow Alabama and SREB standards for distance and blended learning pedagogy addressing the following: student learning styles, student-centered instruction, outcomes-based learning, evaluation/assessment methods, and the use of rich media.
- Develop strategies strengthening student-teacher relationships including an incentive program to encourage periodic teacher visits, increased live interaction with online students, and other F2F encounters during online experiences.
- Support success of all students by establishing rewards for self-discipline in keeping pace, meeting deadlines, and mastering course content.
- Reflect emerging technologies while utilizing existing resources to the best advantage.

#### **INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPORT**

<u>Objective 4</u>: Use ACCESS resources, including online professional development and best practices, to support and evaluate teachers and facilitators and to prepare them for effective, efficient facilitation of learning.

- Develop criteria and implement a system to evaluate and showcase teacher effectiveness.
- Measure teacher and facilitator effectiveness using performance metrics measuring student participation, grades, and course completion rates.
- Document best practices on all levels, sharing examples through a repository and using them for training purposes.
- Record examples of exemplary teaching to document best practices for future professional development use and parent education. Curate this repository.
- Develop standardized criteria for selection of teacher candidates for a Mentoring Master Teacher program.
- Develop a uniform monitoring system through support centers that ensures the implementation of best practice/pedagogy standards among ACCESS teachers and mentors (Master Teachers).
- Increase options for teacher recruitment, addressing policies regarding teacher certification requirements for ACCESS offerings.

#### STUDENT SUPPORT

<u>Objective 5</u>: Provide a continuum of mentoring for students taking advantage of the full range of stakeholders.

- Provide student academic and career mentoring across grade levels and in a manner not limited to ACCESS, engaging teachers, facilitators, administrators, parents, and community stakeholders.
- Develop statewide orientation software to assess and/or remediate technology skills for students enrolled in, or planning to enroll in, distance and blended learning courses.
- Provide programs in Web-based format, accessible at any time, for assessing student strengths/weaknesses, including remediation as needed.

#### **COLLABORATION**

<u>Objective 6</u>: Establish collaborative relationships with two- and four-year institutions, industry, and other community entities to facilitate and enhance college and career preparatory coursework.

- Develop and communicate policies to support sharing of resources between postsecondary institutions and ACCESS, including, but not limited, to Dual Enrollment.
- Develop strategies and programs to prepare students for International Baccalaureate and Advanced Placement courses and exams.
- Utilize the higher education body of knowledge and experts for technologybased offerings to enhance teaching preparation and provide clinical experiences and internships.
- Investigate shared funding models with higher education and pursue preservice grants to strengthen the ACCESS financial structure.
- Develop strategies to encourage involvement of business, industry, and other community partners to enhance career tech opportunities at the secondary level.

#### **VISIBILITY**

<u>Objective 7</u>: Expand awareness, understanding, and appreciation of the ACCESS program and structure among all stakeholders.

- Promote ACCESS through superintendents' meetings, principals' meetings, PTO meetings, Open House, etc., to mobilize stakeholders to actively advocate strengthening high school curriculum through ACCESS.
- Utilize public media to promote ACCESS by developing promotional strategies for schools to use, including parent meetings regarding ACCESS policies, expectations, and ways to support students.
- Provide demonstration courses for parents and allow parental access to student progress through communication with designated school personnel.
- Advocate legislative awareness of the ACCESS program.

#### **STATE OVERSIGHT**

## <u>Objective 8</u>: Provide administrative oversight, management, and support through the Alabama Department of Education and Support Centers.

- Continue to implement management structure, with particular emphasis on financial oversight and program accountability, to ensure budgets are developed and executed with efficiency according to the ACCESS Distance and Blended Learning Plan.
- Utilize outside evaluation to periodically assess strengths and weaknesses of the program and use them as the basis for appropriate adjustments to the annual implementation of the program.
- Promote key priorities of ACCESS to maintain program quality, plan for growth, respond to changing demands, and encourage innovative delivery strategies.
- Continue the evaluation process for Support Centers that utilizes the identified standards of excellence as benchmarks. The process will include participation and feedback from all stakeholders annually.
- Promote collaboration among Support Centers to identify and assure standards of excellence related to organization, responsibilities, expectations, evaluation, and resources.
- Continue to utilize the Alabama Research and Education Network (AREN) for quality of service delivery of Web based, VCI, and blended distance learning courses. Expand AREN to meet increased ACCESS bandwidth requirements as funding permits.

#### **SUSTAINABILITY**

# <u>Objective 9</u>: Refine a sustainability and long-term funding plan for maintenance and growth in the number of students served.

- Determine growth by need and capacity and request budget accordingly.
- Assess key priorities and budget available funds accordingly with meeting students' needs as first priority.
- Project teacher work force required to provide quality instruction for student population.
- Consider how the limitations of existing technology in schools will affect and possibly restrict program growth.
- Maintain a comprehensive plan for infrastructure growth for Web based, VCI, and blended delivery of courses involving major stakeholders, including, but not limited to, the Alabama Department of Education, Alabama Supercomputer Authority, and local school system technology coordinators.
- Evaluate current Support Center infrastructure to determine whether it will meet anticipated growth and demand.
- Maintain/upgrade existing ACCESS infrastructure based on prior effective use/age and implement "use or lose" policy for schools with ACCESS equipment to encourage and reward system participation.
- Grow infrastructure to support blended model of online and F2F instruction.

#### **BUDGET**

From the beginning, the Task Force felt that it was very important to support schools in overcoming any barriers they might encounter in offering distance and blended learning courses. Funds are allocated for equipment, connectivity, support, course management and development, and teacher training and support. No funds (FTEs) have been taken away from the local schools because of their participation in ACCESS. Thus, true equity can be provided where even the highest poverty level schools can afford to use ACCESS. The purpose of ACCESS is to fill the gaps in all schools where teachers are not available and resources are limited for additional courses in individual schools and to extend the reach of effective teachers.

For long-term budgeting, all course materials are either purchased with a perpetual license or developed by our team of developers. This allows for continued growth at a much lower cost because a seat cost is not being paid to content providers as is the case with the majority of other state virtual schools. This cost model also allows for providing high quality digital content in a secure learning system for blended instruction throughout Alabama.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The ACCESS initiative has become a cornerstone for Alabama's efforts in providing students in Grades 8 through 12 with equitable high-quality education, and has served as a catalyst to reverse statistics citing Alabama among the lowest-performing states for high school and college graduates. In just six years ACCESS has reached out to serve all high schools within the state, and is now widely relied upon to provide key expanded offerings to students, teachers and schools. Yet, there is even greater promise for return on investment. Through existing infrastructure and services and content, ACCESS is positioned to enable efficiencies within the state while at the same time dramatically broaden quality education opportunities. As education is being redesigned across our nation, ACCESS is positioned to enable all Alabama public high schools to move to a blended learning course delivery model, providing opportunities for every student so that all of Alabama's students are college- and career-ready when they graduate from high school. Proven success coupled with efficiency has never been more critical, and ACCESS represents enormous potential to leverage support as it contributes to future educational agenda.

#### **BIBLIOGRAPHY**

- Online Education, Raising Alabama. (2009, July 18th-24th). *The Economist.* 329(8640) p. 30.
- Gura, M. (2007, Summer). Sweet Home Alabama. Converge, 3(2), pp. 20-25.
- Keeping Pace With K-12 Online Learning. (2009, November).
- Lesson Learned from Virtual Schools: Experiences and Recommendations from the Field, edited by Cathy Cavanaugh and Rick Ferdig (November 2010).
- Maddox, M. (2009, December). Blended Learning: The Internet and the Classroom. *Principal Leadership*, 10(4), pp. 72-75.
- Maddox, M. (2009). Case Study: Strategic Planning for Alabama Distance Learning. In Williamson, J. & Redish, R. *ISTE's Technology Facilitation and Leadership Standards*, (pp. 193-194).
- Maddox, M. (2008, July). Access to Opportunity. T.H.E. Journal, 35(7), p. 28.
- Maddox, M. & Donaldson, M. (2008, February). Distance Program Transforming Alabama High Schools. *eSchool News*. p. 43.
- Maddox, M. (2006, July). On the Wave of the Future. *T.H.E. Journal*, 33(12), pp. 14-17.
- Maximizing the Impact: The Pivotal Role of Technology in a 21st Century Education System. SETDA, ISTE, and the Partnership for 21st Century Skills. p. 12.
- Roblyer, M.D., Freeman, J., Donaldson, M.B., & Maddox, M. (2007). A Comparison of Outcomes of Virtual School Courses Offered in Synchronous and Asynchronous Formats. *Internet and Higher Education*, 10, pp. 261-268.
- U.S. Department of Education Office of Innovation and Improvement. *Evaluating Online Learning Challenges and Strategies for Success.* Washington, D.C., 2008.